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Date:

March 24, 2009
To:

Mayor Parris and City Council Members
From:

Elizabeth Brubaker, Housing & Neighborhood Revitalization Director
Subject:
Presentation on Results of the Feasibility of Developing a Multi-Jurisdiction Housing Authority to Administer the Housing Choice Voucher Program 
______________________________________________________________________________

Recommendation:
Receive presentation, and consider name change from the Section 8 Commission to the Lancaster Neighborhood Vitalization Commission.
Fiscal Impact:
The cost of the Neighborhood Revitalization Commission funded from account number 938-4542-202 not to exceed $2,000.
Background:

In 2005, Michael Antonovich, 5th District Supervisor and staff met with Lancaster City Manager and staff to discuss the excessive number of problems citizens were encountering in their neighborhoods and the excessive number of complaints that staff were receiving about disorderly Section 8 tenants.

The result of the meeting was that Lancaster and the County of Los Angeles would enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Community Development Commission for additional Section 8 investigative staff, the cost shared equally between Lancaster and the County.  In addition, staff from the City of Lancaster, County of Los Angeles and Community Development Commission of Los Angeles County would work together to resolve the issues involving disorderly Section 8 tenants.

In 2008, City Council approved continuing with the Memorandum of Understanding for the Fiscal Year 2008-09 and directed staff to research the feasibility of Lancaster taking over the administration of the Section 8 Housing Voucher (HCV) program.  In addition, the City Council approved executing an Agreement with G Fortner Group Incorporated to study, analyze, and evaluate the feasibility of developing a multi-jurisdictional housing authority to administer the HCV program in the cities of Lancaster, Palmdale and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County. 

One assumption going into the study was that Lancaster could automatically assume budget authority for all local vouchers if a PHA was established.  However, this assumption proved to be untrue, as Public Housing Authorities (PHA) obtain funding for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program from HUD through federal appropriations under a “fair share” distribution of new vouchers.  There has been no HCV funding appropriation from HUD since 2001; and, there is no indication that the Federal Government will be making any adjustments to this appropriation.  The Housing Authority of Los Angeles County (HACoLA) has a contract with HUD that provides the funding and budget authority for all 20,000 vouchers administered by HACoLA.  HACoLA does not have the legal authority to release any portion of the contract vouchers to a 3rd party without petitioning HUD to modify the existing contract and request that HUD enter into a separate contract with the local PHA.  HACoLA must seek approval through legislative action from the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors (LACOBOS) to release vouchers to a local authority before HUD could be petitioned; and, there is no guarantee or mandate that requires HUD or the LACOBOS to consider or approve such a request.  It is unlikely that the LACOBOS would vote in favor of reducing their existing contract with HUD.  By reducing their current contract by the total number of vouchers (3,600) assigned to the Antelope Valley, they would reduce HACoLA’s Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) receipts by $32 million dollars and further reduce their administrative fee by an additional $3 million dollars.  The loss of the administrative fee attached to the vouchers would severely impact the entire HACoLA operating budget.

Nonetheless, Lancaster has an existing Housing Authority and could work with HUD to obtain approval for the Authority to administer the HCV program in the event immediate and fundamental changes are made regarding funding of subsidized government programs, and Lancaster finds that it is in the position, if advantageous, to take over the administration of the HCV program. 

· The proposed recommendation not to take over the administration of the HCV program, at this time, is not solely based on the lack of new vouchers, the cost to administer the program, and lack of consensus to create a multi-jurisdictional housing authority.  The recommendation is also based on the success of the partnership between HACoLA, the City and LASD, and sustained efforts and commitments to deter disorderly Section 8 tenants in Lancaster over the last three years.  HACoLA has made changes to the administration of the HCV program that more effectively deters disorderly Section 8 tenants in Lancaster.  One substantial change to the program was HACoLA’s aggressive position to hold the City of Los Angeles accountable and responsible for doing criminal background checks on potential Section 8 tenants, a HUD requirement.  The City of Los Angeles, as HACoLA discovered, was not performing criminal background checks before issuing HCV’s.  Many of those individuals with criminal histories and HCV’s were porting into HACoLA and moving to Lancaster.  It took a concerted collaborated effort of County Housing Investigators, Los Angeles County Deputies and Code Enforcement Officers to investigate and terminate those tenants from the HCV program.  

· Another substantial change to the program involved holding HACoLA to a new standard of accountability in administrating the HCV program.  HACoLA was tasked with providing monthly reports to affected agencies with quantifiable information to measure the performance, operation, and quality of the many facets of the HCV program.  These reports provide important data and information to help explain why Lancaster has more Section 8 tenants than other cities, what is causing Lancaster to have more disorderly Section 8 tenants than other cities, and what appropriate action(s) should be taken to correct the problems.
· Another substantial change to the program involved County Housing Investigators attending the introductory Parole and Probation meetings.  These mandatory informational meetings explain the rules and regulations of the HCV program to new residents who are on parole and probation.  Under the HUD guidelines, a holder of a HCV cannot have a parolee or probationer reside at their home.  

· Recently, HACoLA has worked with Lancaster by providing a letter to all property owners of HCV holders that they are required to obtain a Lancaster Rental Business License and are subject to an inspection by the City.  In addition, HACoLA has invited City Council Members, Administration, Code Enforcement and Sheriff’s, of Lancaster and Palmdale to attend introductory meetings with holders of HCV’s to inform them of what the cities expect from them as residents of both cities.
· The County of Los Angeles created a Section 8 hotline for the citizens of Lancaster to call when they suspect that the holder of a HCV is committing fraud, disobeying Federal, State and Local laws and being unruly.  The hot line has been very successful in terminating disorderly and fraudulent HCV holders and assisting Deputies with arrests of non HCV holders who are violating the law.  

· In 2007, the Rental Housing Business License and Preservation Ordinance was adopted by City Council.  Additional code enforcement staff was hired and trained and the program was implemented later that year.  The rental inspection component of the ordinance holds the property owner and the tenant accountable for the condition and maintenance of the property. In addition, the rental inspection component utilizes Code Enforcement Officers to address units fewer than ten, which are scattered throughout Lancaster.  Code Enforcement has discovered violators of the HCV program rules and regulations and worked with County Housing Investigators and Deputies to terminate those tenants from the program. 

· Prior to the adoption of the Rental Housing Business License and Preservation Ordinance, LAN-CAP, a unit of the Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department, was established to focus on multi-family apartment complexes in Lancaster.  LAN-CAP conducted several operations working with County Housing Investigators to terminate disorderly Section 8 tenants.  LAN-CAP has been and continues to be extremely successful at maintaining the large apartment complexes.
· More recently, Code Enforcement, County Housing Investigators, the Los Angeles Sheriff’s Departments tasks forces, LAN-CAP, Community Oriented Policing Services team, (COPS); and Target Oriented Policing team (TOPS) and High Impact, Parole Officers, and Probation Officers have been working as a unit going house-by-house, block-by-block, and neighborhood by neighborhood to eliminate all disorderly tenants.  This strategy is working and many citizens in several neighborhoods are beginning to feel the effects and see the positive change.
In addition to the existing initiatives described above, staff and Councilwoman Marquez have asked HACoLA to implement the following:
· Strengthen tenant background checks to include property crimes such as burglary.
· Implement a program similar to that implemented in San Diego which has an aggressive annual inspection program (with corresponding checklist) intended to look for signs of criminal activity and Section 8 contract violations as a part of the HACoLA annual inspection.
· Implement and/or strengthen background checks for Program landlords to identify prior criminal and/or fraudulent activity.
· HACoLA is to immediately revise its HAP application and renewal process to ensure proof of a current local business license.
· HACoLA will review the number of investigators (and associated support personnel) it has countywide, and particularly in the Antelope Valley, to determine caseload and capacity to address complaints as well as provide proactive enforcement.

The Section 8 Commission was created to assist in forming a multi-jurisdictional housing authority in the Antelope Valley; since a multi-jurisdictional Housing Authority is not going to be established at this time, the Commission has been modified to a Lancaster Neighborhood Vitalization Commission.  The Lancaster Neighborhood Vitalization Commission will assist the citizens of Lancaster to make changes to improve their neighborhoods.  
Summary:

Most, if not all, of the above changes to the HCV program, Rental Housing Business License Program and targeted law enforcement programs have taken place over the last two years.  The inter-agency enforcement programs focused on rental properties are working to eliminate disorderly tenants in Lancaster.  Time should be given to ascertain whether the changes to the rental programs are generating the results that Lancaster and its citizen’s desire.  If after the above changes to the rental programs are not effective and the team can no longer create programs, policies and procedures to reduce the number of disorderly Section 8 tenants, then staff and the City Council should revisit creating a multi-jurisdictional housing authority, with Palmdale, to administer the HCV program.  In the interim, staff recommends modifying the Section 8 Commission to function as a Lancaster Neighborhood Vitalization Commission as described in the Staff Report.
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